ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS COW TTEE
April 4, 2001
1:45 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Torgerson, Chair
Senat or Al an Aust er nan
Senat or Randy Phillips

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln
Senator Pete Kelly

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 16

"An Act relating to cities incorporated under state |aw that are

hone rule comunities; and providing for an effective date.™
HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action recorded
W TNESS REAQ STER

Representative Fred Dyson

Al aska State Capitol, Room 104
Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Bill sponsor

Kevin Ritchie

Al aska Muni ci pal League

217 2nd Street

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 16

d en Marunde
P. 0. Box 192
Tok, AK 99780
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 16
John Pear son

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2001



Hyder Community Associ ation
No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 16

John Kuni k
d ennal | en, AK 99588
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 16

Tamar a Cook

Director

Legislative Affairs Agency

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on HB 16

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-12, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAI RVAN JOHN TORGERSON called the Senate Conmunity & Regional
Affairs Committee neeting to order at 2:10 p.m Present were
Senators, Lincoln, Austerman, Phillips and Chairnman Torgerson.
There was one item on the agenda.

#HB 16

HB 16- HOVE RULE COMVUNI Tl ES

REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSQN, bill sponsor, introduced the bill. Wen
he first was elected to the legislature, Vic Fischer told himthat
this was an inportant issue that needed addressing.

Article 10 in the Al aska Constitution encourages self-determnation
in Alaska's communities. HB 16 all ows existing second class cities,
or unincorporated areas, to forma hone rule community. This is
simlar to a second class city but the community is able to wite
their own charter, which allows themflexibility in determning the

scope of their governing powers and the services that wll be
provi ded.
It is his hope that this will renove sone of the disincentives

associated with organizing. It should also allow communities the
ability to organize a formof government that they are confortable
with and is nore traditional and culturally appropriate.

He called nenber's attention to the final pages of the "Achieving

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2001



Al aska Native Self-CGovernance" report by The Econom cs Resource
Goup, Inc. and The Institute of Social and Econom c Research,
University of Alaska, Anchorage dated May 1999. There are also
| etters of support fromthe Sout heast Conference, Hyder and several
i ndi vidual s including Vic Fischer and Richard Burton.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how HB 16 coincides with SB 48.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said his bill only addresses what are
presently second class cities and they should still be able to
wite their owmn charter if they are located in an area that is
i ncorporated into a borough. However, he would defer part of the
question to Tamara Cook when she arrives.

CHAI RVAN TORCGERSON asked whi ch disincentives this bill is trying to
correct.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said communities wouldn't be required to have
an audit of their books every year as is now required of second
class cities.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON sai d whet her a second class city could get out
of the audit requirement with public dollars.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said yes, if they swtched to a hone rule
comunity.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked if that was in the bill or just a result
of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON sai d the requirenent that they do not have to
have an audit is in the bill but "it doesn't say to second cl ass
cities you can now switch. And of course in order to becone a hone
rule community it's got to go through the boundary conm ssion and
t hat whol e process.™

In the last few years, there have been nearly as many conmunities
di ssol ving thensel ves as organi zi ng under state |aw.

A question that arose when simlar legislation was introduced | ast
year is, "Are you trying to keep communities from organizing as
tribes?" H's answer is no; he's hoping nmany conmunities will do
bot h.

SENATCOR LI NCOLN asked about the econom c benefits and drawbacks to
the bill.

Number 128

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said the najor benefit is to nmake it easier
for individuals to organize for self-determnation. Al so,
comunities will be able to organize in ways that are culturally
and traditionally famliar

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked for econom c benefits and dr awbacks.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said the advantage is that a state
organi zation is provided that Cormmunity and Regional Affairs can
comuni cate with and funnel nonies and prograns through. It gives
the community status in state law so bonding is possible; a
property tax of up to 2 mlls may be inposed if so desired.

The only di sadvantage he can think of is the disadvantage of self-
determ nati on because responsibility is always unconfortabl e.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked whether this would be available to just
second class cities and not first class cities.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said first class cities may now formtheir own
charters. This bill extends the privilege to current second-cl ass
cities.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked what powers might be lost if a conmunity
organi zed as hone rul e.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said nothing that can presently be done as a
second-class city would be [ost under honme rule. Basically, the
bill adds "or hone rule conmunity" after "second class city" to
sections of Title 29.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked for questions. There were none.

KEVIN RITCH E, from the Al aska Minicipal League, views this as a
positive bill that allows second class cities to wite their own
charter. Community discussion and decision about effective self-
government is a positive event and to the extent that it would be
an enticenent to organize, this too is viewed as a benefit.

Anot her benefit is that a honme rule community may be reclassified
as a home rule city. It is a reasonable step that doesn't change
the requirenments or responsibilities of communities; it allows
second class cities to determine what will make their city operate
better through formation of a charter.

CHAI RMVAN TORGERSON asked for an interpretation of the difference
bet ween honme rul e conmunity and honme rule city.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2001



MR RITCH E said, "You can have this charter but you don't have the
broad powers of a home rule city. A honme rule city, obviously, has
any power not prohibited to it. A second class city has only powers
not restricted by its charter™

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON said, "You're saying it would have to do with
charter with the honme rule comunity also. | don't see the
difference. Can't a second class city petition for a home rule city
now?"

MR RITCH E said it could. "The difference between a honme rule city
and a hone rule comunity wuld be the whole class of
responsibility that cones with being a first class or a hone rule
city."

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON responded that it's limted by their charter.
MR RITCH E said, "As |imted by the charter, right."

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON said you could do that now. He wanted that on
the record.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said there are two things; to be a hone rule
city there nust be land planning and they nust becone their own
school district. Those are two significant responsibilities that
some communities don't want to or aren't prepared to accept.

"Anot her classification, and Tamw Il be able to speak to it, they
are a general law community unless they choose to organize, and we
end up being their governnment. So they have the chance to have
their own and not have to be governed by the general |aw rules,
ri ght?"

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked M. Ritchie why there wasn't a letter from
the Al aska Munici pal League although he assunes they endorse the
i dea.

MR RITCH E said the letter is forthcom ng.

SENATOR AUSTERMAN asked about joint insurance.

MR, RITCH E said that second class cities are noweligible to be a
menber of the joint insurance association. If you weren't a city
and then becane a honme rule community you would be a municipality

under the definition of the state |law and you would be eligible to
be served.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2001



G_LEN MARUDE of Tok testified in support of HB 16. He views HB 16 as
a stepping-stone toward borough formation.

Nunmber 300
JOHN PEARSON, Econom c Devel opnent Pl anner for the Community of

Hyder, testified in support of HB 16. This nmay be a nmajor factor in
the further devel opnent of the comrunity. The conmunity currently

has their own fire departnent, energency services, library, visitor
center, museum provides snow renoval, operates a cable TV servi ce,
maintains a landfill, oversees a state owned boat harbor, was

recently approved by the FCC for a | ow power FMradi o station and
operates a one room school. Also, there is a bottled water plant
t hat enpl oyees 26 peopl e and shoul d i ncrease to enpl oy 41 peopl e by
the end of August.

This bill wll give the community the opportunity to participate in
state bonding prograns and they could also take advantage of
opportunities such as the ferry authority. Several years ago Hyder
was denied this opportunity because of the organization of the
community. Under honme rule community status, they would be able to
participate. There is incentive to participate with Prince of Wales
to becone a nenber of the authority. There are, in fact, a nunber
of state prograns that they would like to participate in but are
currently deni ed because of the community status.

Currently, Hyder is doing reasonably well econom cally because of
the bottled water project, a small comunity project that was
started by residents that were |ooking beyond unenpl oynent and
wel fare. Two years ago, with their own noney and help from the
Econom ¢ Devel opnent Adm nistration (EDA) they | ocated a market and
devel oped a plant. They are able to blow their own bottles and
manuf acture their own shipping pallets thus providing nore
enpl oynment opportunities. It is because of this prosperity they
fear annexation by the Ketchi kan borough.

What they are doing in Hyder is an exanple of what could be done in
many comunities around the state. In Southeast there are 13
comunities that could take advantage of HB 16 and realistically,
three will do so. "W see passage of HB 16 as giving Hyder the
opportunity to becone a bigger player in the schene of things in
the State of Al aska."

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked why they don't forma second class city.

MR. PEARSON said that the high cost of surveying and platting has
been a drawback. He doesn't know how t he school woul d be affected

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2001



but the comunity didn't think they were ready to form a second
class city.

SENATOR LINCOLN said that the testifier from Tok called this a
st eppi ng-stone toward formation of a borough. She wondered whet her
M. Pearson viewed it the same way.

MR PEARSON said it would give Hyder the breathing roomit needs as
a community and if the Ketchi kan borough annexes the area around
Hyder that wouldn't be a problem They are not objecting to |iving
in the nei ghborhood of a borough but they are not prepared to be
i ncluded in a borough.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked about the process whereby they decided on a
water bottling plant. This seens to be an excellent exanple of
maki ng sonet hi ng out of not hing.

MR. PEARSON said it began with a call from a worman who needed
100, 000 gallons of water delivered to Detroit on a daily basis.
Charlie Northrip fromthe Juneau Econom c Devel opnent Council had
referred her saying this was a man who woul d be interested in such
a project. At that tine, there was no place in Al aska that could
deliver that volune of bottled water but he said he'd come up with
a sol ution.

He approached the Economi c Devel opnent Admi nistration and was told
they would help with funding if he would devel op and oversee the
devel opment of the project. He was famliar with Hyder and knew
they had a real need for econom c devel opnent so that's where he
began. Wth $800,000, lots of volunteer help and no Davis Bacon
requirenments they were able to build the plant and begin operation.

JOHN KUNI K from d ennal | en said he knew that a honme rule conmunity
woul d not constitute a school district but wondered whether a hone
rule city would constitute a school district.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON said it woul d.

JOHN KUNI K testified via tel econference from @ ennall en and asked
whet her his conmunity could tax the pipeline if the ad val oremtax
a hone rule community or second class city could levy was four
percent of assessed value rather than two percent.

CHAlI RVAN TORCGERSON r esponded that they could do whatever was in the
charter. The pipeline can be taxed up to the amount all other
residents are taxed, which is up to 20 mlls.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked Tanmara Cook whet her any powers woul d be

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2001



automatically granted to a hone rule community that would not be
granted to an uni ncorporated comunity or would it depend on their
charter.

TAVARA COOK, Director of Legislative Legal Services, said basically
it would be what is in their charter although the power to tax
would be granted to them and is not granted to a conmunity.
Essentially, home rule conmunities would operate as a second cl ass
city wwth nore or less the sane restraints. The main di stingui shing
poi nts between operating as second class city and a honme rule
community are that when the charter is witten, it could be witten
in away that is nore restrictive and that a second class city may
elect to take on the provision of various services and exercise
various powers. If a hone rule comunity has a strict charter, it
takes the power to make decisions about the kinds of service to
provi de away fromthe governing body and places it in the hands of
t he peopl e and a charter cannot be expanded without a vote of the
peopl e.

In Al aska, we |ook upon a charter as the sort of thing that a
sophi sticated community would utilize and in this case, a charter
could act as a shield, and create a formof governnent that is nore
restrictive than a typical second class city.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked what automatic powers woul d be included in
addition to taxation, land entitlenment and boundary determ nati on.

M5. COX said when they file their incorporation petition they nust
file the sanme type of information.

CHAl RMAN TORGERSON asked whet her there was a | and grant that would
automatically go to the comunity.

M5. COX thought they are included.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON said, "10 percent unreserved, unappropriated
| and |i ke anybody else formng up." He thought this would be the
case unless they are precluded by the |egislature.

M5. COX thought they would be treated the sane as a second cl ass
city.

CHAl RVAN TORGERSON said, "If Hyder wanted to go right over and take
right up to Ketchikan they could, right?" Wth a chuckle, he said
this woul d be an opposite | and grab.

He said he knows the Local Boundary Comm ssion (LBC) is involved
but who determ nes the boundaries? Is it a petition to LBC?

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2001



M5. COX said, yes, there's a petition process. The LBC ultimately
approves a petition for incorporation of any class of nunicipality
and it may al so recommend changes to a petition before approval is
gr ant ed.

CHAI RVAN TORCGERSON returned to the question of taxation powers that
a community could or could not charter itself out of.

M5. COX agreed that they could charter thenselves into a limt if
t hey chose to.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON said if taxation is a power that s
automatical ly granted, what about zoning powers?

M5. COX said that second class cities are currently permtted but
not required to zone. It depends upon whether they are in a borough
that is exercising the zoning power.

Assum ng you are dealing with a second class city that is not in
that situation, it is not obligated to zone, and because of the way
HB 16 is drafted, neither would home rule communities. The charter
of a honme rule community could say it was or was not going to zone.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON sai d schools woul d not be an issue.
M5. COOK agreed there couldn't be a school district.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked whet her a mayor and council or sone form
of | eadership would be required.

M5. COX said yes, the Al aska Constitution requires a city to have
a council and a borough have an assenbly.

CHAl RMAN TORGERSON asked whether there is a potential problemwth
el ections if the |leadership is able to choose their own titles.

M5. COOK does not see selecting a nane as a |egal problem Hone
rule communities created under HB 16 are subject to the existing
provisions that apply to hone rule municipalities and they are al so
subject to limtations that apply to second class cities.

CHAl RMAN TORGERSON asked whether they would be responsible for
their own el ections.

M5. COX said they woul d operate their own el ections.

CHAI RMAN TORCGERSON said that is just like a second class city does

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2001



now.

M5. COOK agreed. For exanple, if a honme rule community said, in
their charter, the commnity may not conduct an election, the state
has no requirenent to do it for the community so such a charter
woul d be sel f defeating because there would be no one to conduct an
el ection.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked Ms. Cook to outline the economc benefits and
drawbacks in having a honme rule conmunity.

M5. COOK asked if she wanted a conpari son between other kinds of
communities or as opposed to non-incorporated status.

SENATOR LI NCOLN sai d either.

M5. COK said the great econom c benefit would be that once you
have an organi zed nunicipality, that nmunicipality qualifies for a
nunber of prograns for nunicipal aid. There is also aid given to
uni ncorporated communities and it is possible that they woul d have
to give up that aid but, overall, they would probably qualify for
nore aid progranms if they were incorporated. Mst prograns that
provide aid to unincorporated communities have an offsetting
program that provides aid to a nunicipality of the sanme size. In
sonme cases, a community would be substituting its unincorporated
aid for its city aid. CGenerally though, it would be in a position
to get nore aid.

To the extent that the state is nore involved in contracting for
the provision of services with |ocal governnents, an unincor porat ed
city wth municipal standing would be in a better situation to take
advant age of sonme of those contract opportunities.

CHAl RMAN TORGERSON asked whether honme rule communities woul d be
able to vote to bond thenselves or enter into revenue bondi ng.

M5. COX said they would; a nmunicipality of the state has the right
to incur formal debt, both revenue bonds and bond anticipation
not es and general obligation bonds upon a vote of the people.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS added that they would also participate in the
muni ci pal bond band.

M5. COOK agr eed.
CHAI RVAN TORGERSON remarked that those were all positive aspects.

He asked whether there were differences between a charter that

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2001



woul d create a honme rule city and a charter that would create a
hone rule community or does the difference arise fromthe powers
that are adopted in the charter.

M5. COX said it's just the powers they adopt in their charter that
will create the difference. "However, there are sonme things in the
statutes that now are required of honme rule cities that have
exenpted these comunities from those provisions in this draft.”
Exanples are, being a school district and the requirenent of
provi ding for planning and zoning which now applies to honme rule
municipalities but will be permtted but not mandatory for these
types of communities.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked who would settle planning and zoning
di sputes in Hyder since it would be a community w t hout overl appi ng
governnmental powers from a borough

M5. COOK said that if they have no planning and zoning powers,
there are no planning and zoni ng issues.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked about any di sadvantages to the state as a
whol e to having honme rul e conmunities.

M5. COOK could not think of any disadvantages. Mdst comunities
that mght elect to beconme a honme rule conmmunity could already
beconme a second class city if they so elected. Therefore, the state
would not be in a different position with respect to setting up
hone rule comunities than it is right now

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked why the commttee wouldn't want to adopt HB
16 after hearing the testinony that was heard today.

M5. COOK asked if the question was directed at her.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said, "If you' ve got an answer to that that'd be
fine."

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON didn't know that it was a question, it sounded
| i ke a statenent.

M5. COX said she represents a policy neutral agency.

CHAl RMAN TORGERSON asked whether honme rule community formation
m ght lead to conflicts with prior LBC determ nations.

Side B

M5. COOX thought the LBC would | ook at an incorporation petition

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2001



the sane way they do now, which is on a case-by-case basis. There
woul d be a requirenent to submt the proposed home rule charter
wWith the incorporation petition so the LBC will know what the
charter would |l ook |ike before they nust deci de whether or not the
i ncorporation question should be presented to the people for a
vote. They would be able to decide whether the community has the
econom c ability and social cohesiveness to provide sone form of
val uabl e nuni ci pal | ocal governnent.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON asked how revenue sharing woul d be determ ned
for an unincorporated community |ocated in a borough that wanted to
change and has either a high raw fish tax or high paynment in |ieu
of taxes (PILT) paynent fromthe federal governnent.

M5. COOK presunes that it would be the sane way as with a second
class city. This bill directs the drafting of an additional bil
that brings all other statutes into conformty and also gives
direction to treat hone rule comunities as second class cities in
any provision addressing second class cities.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON isn't sure there is a determnation on
unor gani zed boroughs distributing PILT noney but home rule
communities would have a claim on any shared revenues from any
sour ce.

M5. COOK' S understanding of PILT noney is that it is going to
organi zed cities in the unorgani zed boroughs. Communities that are
in the unorgani zed borough would qualify for PILT noney because
t hey woul d becone organi zed cities.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON is assum ng the LBC won't et these comunities
take in a great deal of federal |and but asked whether there is a
way to keep a community fromfiling for nore land than is feasible
for themto manage.

M5. COX said the only thing she is aware of is the LBC process of
accepting, rejecting or rewiting a petition. She isn't sure how
the LBC reaches their decisions.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON said he is nore confortable with the bill than

at the beginning of the neeting but it will be held in commttee
until a few nore questions are answered.
#

The neeting was adjourned at 3:00 p. m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2001



